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Bldg. 02

A Life Safety Code Recertification 

Survey was conducted by the Indiana 

State Department of Health in accordance 

with 42 CFR 483.470(j).

Survey Date:  03/13/15

Facility Number:  000590

Provider Number:  15G024

AIM Number:  100248560

Surveyors:  W. Chris Greeney, Life 

Safety Code Specialist; Scott Wytosick, 

Life Safety Code Specialist

At this Life Safety Code survey, ADEC, 

Inc. was found not in compliance with 

Requirements for Participation in 

Medicaid, 42 CFR Subpart 483.470(j), 

Life Safety from Fire and the 2000 

edition of the National Fire Protection 

Association (NFPA) 101, Life Safety 

Code (LSC), Chapter 33, Existing 

Residential Board and Care Occupancies.

This one story facility with a basement 

was fully sprinklered.  The facility has a 

fire alarm system with smoke detection in 

the corridors, bedrooms and in common 

living areas.  The facility has a capacity 

of 8 and had a census of 6 at the time of 

K 000  
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this survey.

Calculation of the Evacuation Difficulty 

Score (E-Score) using NFPA 101A, 

Alternative Approaches to Life Safety, 

Chapter 6, rated the facility Prompt with 

an E-Score of 0.84.

Quality Review by Dennis Austill, Life 

Safety Code Specialist on 03/19/15.

The facility was found not in compliance 

with the aforementioned regulatory 

requirements as evidenced by the 

following:

 K 130

 

Bldg. 02

Based on observation and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure 1 of 1 portable 

fire extinguishers located in the laundry 

room was mounted on a wall. NFPA 101, 

Section 4.5.7 states any device equipment 

or system required for compliance with 

this Code shall thereafter be maintained 

unless the Code exempts such 

maintenance. NFPA 10, Standard for 

Portable Fire Extinguishers, Section 

1-6.7 requires portable fire extinguishers 

shall be securely installed on the hangar 

or in the bracket supplied or placed in 

cabinets or wall recesses. The hanger or 

K 130 On 3/17/1 the fire extinguisher 

was mounted to the wall in the 

laundry area In order to prevent 

future occurrences, maintenance 

staff will make sure all facility 

extinguishers are wall mounted 

when conducting monthly 

inspections

Person Responsible: 

Maintenance

03/31/2015  12:00:00AM
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bracket shall be securely and properly 

anchored to the mounting surface in 

accordance with manufacturer's 

instructions. Section 1-6.10 states, in no 

case shall the clearance between the 

bottom of the extinguisher and the floor 

be less than 4 inches. This deficient 

practice could affect any staff and/or 

clients.

Findings include: 

Based on observation during a tour 

between 11:05 A.M. and 12:00 noon on 

3/13/2015 with the facility's Q-tech, the 

portable fire extinguisher located in the 

laundry room was sitting directly on a 

counter against the wall in the corner of 

the room. Interview with the Q-tech 

during the observation indicated the fire 

extinguisher had always been stationed 

on that counter.

483.470(j)(1)(i) 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

Utilities comply with Section 9.1.     32.2.5.1, 

33.2.5.1

K 046
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Based on observation and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure 1 of 1 electrical 

receptacles observed in the basement 

were maintained in a safe operating 

condition.  LSC 9.1.2 requires electrical 

wiring and equipment to comply with 

NFPA 70, National Electrical Code, 1999 

K 046 On 3/17/15 the plate was put 

back on the basement outlet 

Maintenance staff will monitor the 

facility for such repairs while 

conducting monthly audits person 

responsible: Maintenance

03/17/2015  12:00:00AM
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Edition.  NFPA 70, 1999 Edition, Article 

370-28(c) requires all junction boxes 

shall be provided with covers compatible 

with the box.  This deficient practice 

could affect all clients.  

Findings include:

Based on observation during a tour 

between 11:05 A.M. and 12:00 noon on 

3/13/2015 with the facility's Q-tech, an 

electrical outlet located in the basement 

of the home lacked a cover plate. 

Interview with the Q-tech during the 

observation indicated staff were unaware 

the cover plate had been missing.

483.470(j)(1)(i) 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

PROMPT

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7, 33.2.3.5.2 and activates the fire 

alarm system in accordance with 33.2.3.4.1.  

The adequacy of the water supply is 

documented to the authority having 

jurisdiction.

Exception No. 1: In prompt evacuation 

facilities, an automatic sprinkler system in 

accordance with NFPA 13D, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in One 

and two Family Dwellings and Manufactured 

Homes, is permitted. Automatic sprinklers 

are not required in closets not exceeding 24 

sq. ft. and in bathrooms not exceeding 55 

K 056

 

Bldg. 02
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sq. ft., provided that such spaces are 

finished with lath and plaster or materials 

providing a 15 minute thermal barrier.

Exception No. 2: Not applicable

Exception No. 3: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities where an 

automatic sprinkler system is in accordance 

with NFPA 13, Standard for the Installation 

of Sprinkler Systems, automatic sprinklers 

are not required in closets not exceeding 24 

sq. ft and in bathrooms not exceeding 55 sq. 

ft., provided that  such spaces are finished 

with lath and plaster or material providing a 

15 minute thermal barrier.

Exception No. 4: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities up to and 

including four stories in height, systems in 

accordance with NFPA 13R, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in 

Residential Occupancies up to and Including 

Four Stories in Height, are permitted.

Exception No. 5: Not applicable

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 33.2.3.5.5.

SLOW

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7 and activates the fire alarm 

system in accordance with 33.2.3.4.1. The 

adequacy of the water supply is documented 

to the authority having jurisdiction.

Exception No. 1: Not Applicable
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Exception No. 2: Not Applicable

Exception No. 3: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities where an 

automatic sprinkler system is in accordance 

with NFPA 13, Standard for the Installation 

of Sprinkler Systems, automatic sprinklers 

are not required in closets not exceeding 24 

sq. ft. and in bathrooms not exceeding 55 

sq. ft., provided that such spaces are 

finished with lath and plaster or material 

providing a 15 minute thermal barrier.

Exception No. 4: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities up to and 

including four stories in height, systems in 

accordance with NFPA 13R, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in 

Residential Occupancies up to and Including 

Four Stories in Height, are permitted.

Exception No. 5: Not Applicable

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 33.2.3.5.5.

IMPRACTICAL

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7 and activates the fire alarm 

system in accordance with 33.2.3.4.1. The 

adequacy of the water supply is documented 

to the authority having jurisdiction. 

33.2.3.5.2.

Exception No. 1: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 2: In slow and impractical 

evacuation capability facilities, an automatic 

sprinkler system in accordance with NFPA 
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13D, Standard for the Installation of 

Sprinkler Systems in One and Two Family 

Dwellings and Manufactured Homes, with a 

30 minute water supply, is permitted. All 

habitable areas and closets are sprinklered. 

Automatic sprinklers are not required in 

bathrooms not exceeding 55 sq. ft., provided 

that such spaces are finished with lath and 

plaster or materials providing a 15 minute 

thermal barrier.

Exception No. 3: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 4: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 5: In impractical evacuation 

capability facilities up to and including four 

stories in height, systems in accordance with 

NFPA 13R, Standard for the Installation of 

Sprinkler Systems in Residential 

Occupancies up to and Including Four 

Stories in Height, are permitted.  All 

habitable areas and closets are sprinklered. 

Automatic sprinklers are not required in 

bathrooms not exceeding 55 sq. ft., provided 

that such spaces are finished with lath and 

plaster or materials providing a 15 minute 

thermal barrier.

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 33.2.3.5.5.

Based on observation and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure 4 of 4 sprinkler 

heads in  the family room (common area) 

of the home were maintained.  NFPA 

13R, Standard for the Installation of 

Sprinkler Systems in Residential 

Occupancies up to an Including Four 

Stories in Height, Section 2-4.5.7 states 

K 056 The company that conduts the 

facility flow tests will be at the 

facility for needed repairs during 

the first week of May

 In the future when an inspection 

is completed, staff will inspect to 

make sure all equipment is in 

proper repair  person responsible: 

Maintenance

03/30/2015  12:00:00AM
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escutcheon plates used to create a 

recessed or flush-type sprinkler shall be 

part of a listed sprinkler assembly.  This 

deficient practice could affect all clients, 

staff and visitors.

Findings include:

During an observational tour of the home 

with the Q-tech on 3/13/2015 between 

11:05 A.M. and 12:00 noon, four 

sprinkler heads extended outward from 

the sidewalls of a bulkhead in the ceiling 

that extended the length of the room. 

There were two sprinkler heads 

extending out of each side of the 

bulkhead. Each sprinkler head assembly 

extended out away from the wall, with 

the escutcheon staying attached to the 

head but had separated from the wall. 

Piping extended from each of the four 

heads, back through a penetration in the 

bulkhead. However the pipe did not 

sufficiently cover the holes that the 

sprinkler pipe extended through, leaving 

one to two inch gaps at each sprinkler 

location which could allow smoke and 

fire to penetrate the wall. Interview with 

the Q-Tech during the observation 

indicated staff were not aware of the 

issue.
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